Case 1:21-cr-00594-TSC Document 36 Filed 01/23/23 Page 1 of 10

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v. 21-594 (TSC)

JOSHUA HAYNES
MEMORANDUM IN AID OF SENTENCING

Defendant, Joshua Haynes, by and through undersigned counsel,
does hereby submit this Memorandum in Aid of Sentencing.

This matter arises from the events of January 6, 2021 at the United
States Capitol. Sentencing is scheduled to occur on January 31, 2023.

Defendant was initially charged in an eight count indictment charging
Obstruction of an Official Proceeding; Destruction of Property within
Territorial Jurisdiction; Entering and Remaining on Restricted Grounds;
Disorderly and Disruptive Conduct on Restricted Grounds; Engaging n
Physical Violence on Restriction Ground; Disorderly Conduct on Capitol
Grounds, Act of Physical Violence on Capitol Grounds and Parading,
Demonstrating or Picketing in a Capitol Buildings.

On October 28, 2022, defendant entered pleas of guilty before this

Court to Counts One and Two in the indictment. The counts are (1)
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Obstruction of an Official Proceeding and Aiding and Abetting, in violation
.of 18 USC Sections 1512 (c)(2) and (2); and Destruction of Property Within
Territorial Jurisdiction, in violation of 18 USC Section 1363.

The stipulated offense level is 17. The parties have agreed that his
Criminal History Category is Il.

Joshua Haynes negotiated a plea to the charges for which he was
indicted and has fully accepted responsibilty for all of his charged conduct.
He is deeply remorseful for his conduct on January 6, 2021. He is
apologetic for his actions and is aware that the Court, his family, his
community and the citizens of he United States are due an apology and an
assurance that this type od behavior will not be repeated.

While defendant has been serving a prison sentence for a Virginia
state charge, his time on that charge expired months ago and he is now
being held exclusively on the charges before this Court. Defendant is being
held at the Central Virginia Regional Jail. He has endured COVID
lockdowns and has experienced numerous other general lockdowns at the
facility. In sum, he has been paying a significant price for his conduct on
January 6, 2021 and will continue to pay a significant price following

imposition of sentence by this Court.
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Defendant’s conduct on January 6, 2021 does not fully reflect the true
character of Joshua Haynes. It is true that he has a troubled past. It is also
true that has members of his his community who love him, are concerned
for his well-being and have attested to his good character. Defendant
attaches the following letters of reference submitted on his behalf for
consideration by the Court.

1. Loretta Alverson (longtime friend): Ms. Alverson is a retired eligibility
worker employed by Social Security. She retired due to disability. Ms.
Alverson has known Mr. Haynes for several years and fondly remembers
him as the only caucasion member of a community gospel choir. She
recalls personal conversations related to her children and marriage and
considered their bond to be one of brother/sister. She articulates her love
for Mr. Haynes, her support for Mr. Haynes and her appreciation for his
decency.

2. Anne Lacy Wright (Grandmother). Ms. Wright addresses that Mr. Haynes
worked on the City Council in is hometown and that he worked at the local
food pantry. She believes him to be a good person and an admittedly
troubled person. His commitment to the local City Council and his

volunteering with a local food bank bear favorably on nis character.
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Laurfie Wright (Defendant’'s Mother). Ms. Wright has submitted a four page
letter on defendant’s behalf. She discusses defendant'’s childhood
psychiatric problems and the attempts to have the problems treated. He
was diagnosed with a borderline personality disorder and obsessive
compulsive disorder.

Defendant was deemed to have a psychological disorder and this
impacted his ability to maintain steady employment His mother reiterates
that defendant volunteered for the local food pantry and sang in his
community’s choir.

Unfortunately, due to defendant’s mental instability and other fsctors
such as the onset of COVID, defendant descended into the far reaches of
right wing propaganda. He began to believe the messages he viewed on-
line and that is what brought him to Washington, D.C. on January 6, 2021.

Conclusion

Defendant is profoundly remorseful for his conduct on January 6,
2021. He is a troubled and has been incarcerated for a substantial period of
time on this case and the Virginia case in which he was convicted.
Defendant has learned a great lesson about himself and his place in
society while he has been removed from society. He clearly has the love

and support of responsible members of the community who have known



him for years. They stand by him and they will continue to stand by him as
h nmakes an adjustment back into society.

Defendant instructed his counsel from the beginning of the
proceedings to attempt to negotiate a plea to the charges. He has taken full
responsibility for the charges. The parties have agreed that his Offense
Level is 17 and Criminal History Category Il. This places defendant in the
range of 27-33. Defendant respectfully prays this Honorable Court
sentence him at the low end of his guideline range to period of
incarceration of 27 months, minus credit for time to date served.

Respectfully submitted,

Is/
Steven R. Kiersh#323329
5335 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W.
Suite 440
Washington, D.C. 20015
(202) 347-0200

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
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| HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and accurate copy of the foregoing
Was served on this the 23™ day of January, 2023 upon all counsel of
record via the Court’s electronic system.

/s/
Steven R. Kiersh




AOL Mail - Josh Haynes reference letter https://mail.aol.com/d/folders/4/messages/ ANiGipshbPNRY8XDb6...

Josh Haynes reference letter

From: merryfarm@aol.com (merryfarm@aol.com)
To: skiersh@aol.com

Date: Monday, January 16, 2023 at 06:21 PM EST

To Whom It May Concern:

Joshua Dillon Haynes of Covington, VA is my grandson, Legally he is one of my seven step grandchildren.

His grandfather (deceased) and | had two sons and one grandchild. All of the children think of me as their
grandmother as | have been since they were all born. We are a large, close,blended family. We have always shared
vacations and holidays. We have all been respected members of our community for generations.

Joshua and | have always been close as we live in the same town and share a love of animals, community,
church and helping others. He attended every Covington City Council meeting for years. He was appointed to the
planning commission. He volunteered faithfully a couple of days a week to help at the local food pantry.

He was the only young strong back. He was depended on.

Joshua has a mental disability. | think he tries to do the best he can. He is a very polite and kind man. | feel being
quarantined with an unstable girlfriend and constant radical television and Internet ideas distorted his view of the
world. | spoke with him often and | could hear this in our conversations.

| ask for your help and compassion. Joshua has a lot to offer his fellow citizens. He has a good support
system with his mother and step father. | am willing to do what | can.

Please call or contact me if | can be of further aid in this matter.

Anne Lacy Wright

1414 Cove Creek Rd.

Covington VA 24426

540 559 4444 or cell 540 968 3685

System
Sent from the all new AOL app for iOS
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